
  

   
   

  

 
       

   

      
    

    

               
                

          

      

                  

      

                  

              

                   

 

  

      

   

Application: Riverhead Charter School 
Raymond Ankrum - rankrum@rcsli.org 
2022-2023 Annual Report 

Summary 

ID: 0000000250 
Last submitted: Oct 31 2023 05:19 PM (EDT) 
Labels: Board of Regents 

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page 

Completed - Jul 26 2023 

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is collected in a 
survey format within the Annual Report Portal. When entering information in the portal, some of the following items 
may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related items. 

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2022-2023 school year are not required to complete or 

submit an annual report this year). 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the other tasks 

assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover page task, 

please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2023) or you may not be assigned the correct 

tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL 800000036919 
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a1. Popular School Name 

RCS 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2023) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2023 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks. 

BOARD OF REGENTS 

c. School Unionized 

Is your charter school unionized? 

Yes 

c1. Name of Union 

Select the name of the Union representing your school? 

United Federation of Teachers 

c2. Date Unionized 

Jul 1 2009 

d. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

RIVERHEAD CSD 
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e. Date of Approved Initial Charter 

Jul 1 2009 

f. Date School First Opened for Instruction 

Sep 4 2001 

g. Approved School Mission and Key Design Elements 

(Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only) 

Mission: Our mission is to inspire today’s learners to 

become tomorrow’s leaders by setting high 

academic standards, promoting solution orientated 

thinking, and embracing the cultural 

diversity of our community. 

Key Design: 

Focus on quality of instruction based on 

individual student needs 

● High expectations 

● A uniquely affirming and supportive school 

culture 

● Deep linkages to the surrounding 

community 

● Integration of technology within classrooms 

● Continuous development of staff 
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825 

h. School Website Address 

www.riverheadcharterschool.org 

i. Total Approved Charter Enrollment for 2022-2023 School Year 

j. Total Enrollment on June 30, 2023 - excluding Pre-K program enrollment 
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k. Grades Served 

Grades served during the 2022-2023 school year (exclude Pre-K program students): 

Use the CTRL button to select multiple grades to accurately capture every grade level served. 

Responses Selected: 

k 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

l. Charter Management Organization 

Do you have a Charter Management Organization? 

No 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

5 / 59 

http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/definecmo.pdf


  

 

        

  

     

   

  

          

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2023-2024? 

Yes, 2 sites 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical 

Address 

Phone 

Number 

District/CSD Grades to be 

Served at Site 

for previous 

year (K-5, 6-9, 

etc.) 

Grades to be 

Served at Site 

for coming 

year (K-5, 6-9, 

etc.) 

Receives 

Rental 

Assistance for 

Which Grades 

(If yes, enter 

the 

appropriate 

grades. If no, 

enter No). 

Site 1 

3685 Middle 

Country Rd. 

Calverton, NY 

11933 

631-359-5800 Riverhead K-8 K-8 No 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name Title Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

School Leader 
Raymond 

Ankrum 
Superintendent 347-443-0535 

rankrum@rcsli.or 

g 

Operational 

Leader 
Nicola Graham CFO 631-275-9216 

ngraham@rcsli.o 

rg 

Compliance 

Contact 
Nick Timpone 

Dir. K-12 

Academics 
201-615-5376 

ntimpone@rcsli.o 

rg 

Complaint 

Contact 

Samantha 

Camillery 
K-6 Co-principal 631-379-2846 

scamillery@rcsli. 

org 

DASA 

Coordinator 

Dr. Patrick 

McKinney 
HS Principal 631-880-0605 

pmckinney@rcsli. 

org 

Phone Contact 

for After Hours 

Emergencies 

Raymond 

Ankrum 
Superintendent 347-443-0535 

rankrum@rcsli.or 

g 

  

        

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

           

 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-located) space or in private space? 

Private Space 
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report for school site 1 if 

located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of 

occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in district space (NYC co-

locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of occupancy, and a copy of the current 

annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on or after July 1, 2023. 

Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year 2023-2024, 

submit a current fire inspection certificate. 

If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the Annual Report, 

please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on November 1, 2023. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

Certicate of Occupancy ES MS ADMIN.jpg 

Filename: Certicate of Occupancy ES MS ADMIN.jpg Size: 191.2 kB 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

This is required, marked optional for administrative purposes. 

ADMIN ES MS Fire Inspection Report.pdf 

Filename: ADMIN ES MS Fire Inspection Report.pdf Size: 6.6 MB 

School Site 2 
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m2. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical 

Address 

Phone 

Number 

District/CSD Grades to be 

Served at Site 

for previous 

year (K-5, 6-9, 

etc.) 

Grades to be 

Served at Site 

for coming 

year (K-5, 6-9, 

etc.) 

Receives 

Rental 

Assistance for 

Which Grades 

(If yes, enter 

the 

appropriate 

grades. If no, 

enter No). 

Site 2 

5117 A. 

Sound Ave. 

Riverhead, 

NY 11901 

631-880-0605 Riverhead 9-11 9-12 no 

m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2. 

Name Title Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

School Leader Patrick McKinney Principal 631-880-0605 
pmckinney@rcsli. 

org 

Operational 

Leader 
Nicola Graham CFO 631-275-9216 

ngraham@rcsli.o 

rg 

Compliance 

Contact 
Magda Talik Admin Asst 347-564-3307 mtalik@rcsli.org 

Complaint 

Contact 

Raymond 

Ankrum 
Superintendent 347-443-0535 

rankrum@rcsli.or 

g 

DASA 

Coordinator 
Terrell Dozier 

School 

Counselor 
631-678-2327 tdozier@rcsli.org 

Phone Contact 

for After Hours 

Emergencies 

Raymond 

Ankrum 
Superintedent 347-443-0535 

rankrum@rcsli.or 

g 
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m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-located) space or in private space? 

Private Space 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report for school site 2 if 

located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of 

occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in district space (NYC co-

locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of occupancy, and a copy of the current 

annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on or after July 1, 2023. 

Fire inspection certificates must be updated annually. For the upcoming school year 2023-2024, 

submit a current fire inspection certificate. 

If the fire inspection certificate is dated after the August 1, 2022 submission of the Annual Report, 

please submit the new certificate with the Annual Report entries due on November 1, 2023. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

Certicate of Occupancy ES MS ADMIN.jpg 

Filename: Certicate of Occupancy ES MS ADMIN.jpg Size: 191.2 kB 

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report 

This is required, marked optional for administrative purposes. 

ADMIN ES MS Fire Inspection Report.pdf 

Filename: ADMIN ES MS Fire Inspection Report.pdf Size: 6.6 MB 

n. List of owned, rented, leased facilities not used to educate students 

Separate by semi-colon (;) 

None. 
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CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR 

o. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2022-2023 school year? (Please include 

approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions). 

Please note, listing the revisions here does not constitute a request. Schools are advised to seek revision requests 

through their authorizer directly. 

No 

ATTESTATIONS 

p. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. (To write type in a phone number with an 

extension, please use this format: 123-456-7890-3. The dash and number 3 at the end of the phone number 

refers to the individual's phone extension. Do not type in the work extension or the abbreviation for it - just the 

dash and the extension number after the phone number). 

Name Raymond Ankrum 

Position Superintendent 

Phone/Extension 347-443-0535 

Email rankrum@rcsli.org 

q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) below attest that all 

of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with 

all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, 

that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter. Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on 

your PC or the stylus on your mobile device to sign your name). 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 

11 / 59 
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As outlined in ENTRY 10: 

Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) below attest that our 

school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee clearance and fingerprint requirements 

as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click YES to 

agree. 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 
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Date 

Jul 26 2023 

Thank you. 

Entry 2 Links to Critical Documents on School Website 

Completed - Jul 28 2023 

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required to submit item 
5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. Please insert the 
link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2021-2022 Annual Report);[1] 
2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents; 
3. New York State School Report Card; 
4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents, NYCDOE, 

and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY); 
5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency Response 

Plan Memo; 
6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and 
7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See NYSED Subject Matter List) 

[1] Each charter school is required to make the Annual Report publicly available by August 1 and to post on their 
respective charter school website. Each school should post an updated and complete version to include 
accountability data and financial statements that are not or may not be available until after the August deadline (i.e., 
Repost when financials have been submitted in November.) 

Form for Entry 2 Links to Critical Documents on School 
Website 

School Name: Riverhead Charter School 
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Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required to submit item 

4: Authorizer-approved DASA policy and NYSED-Approved School Discipline Policy 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. Please insert the 

link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

New York State Report Card 

Emergency Response Plan Memo 

NYSED Subject Matter List 

Link to Documents 

1. Current Annual Report (i.e., 2022-2023 Annual 

Report) 

https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/about-

us/annual-audit-report/ 

2. Board meeting notices, agendas and documents 
https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/about-us/board-

of-trustees/ 

3. New York State School Report Card 
https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

year=2022&instid=800000036919 

4. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy and NYSED-

Approved School Discipline Policy (For Regents, 

NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools 

ONLY) 

https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/wp-

content/uploads/2020/07/DASA-policies.pdf 

5. District-wide safety plan, not a building level safety 

plan (as per the September 2021 Emergency Response 

Plan Memo 

https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/wp-

content/uploads/2022/10/RCS-K-12-Emergency-Plan-

22-23-1.pdf 

6. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/contact/ 

7. Subject matter list of FOIL records. (Example: See 

NYSED Subject Matter List) 

https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/wp-

content/uploads/2020/07/FOIL.pdf 

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 

Completed - Oct 31 2023 

Instructions 
14 / 59 
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https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/DASA-policies.pdf
https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/RCS-K-12-Emergency-Plan-22-23-1.pdf
https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/contact/
https://www.riverheadcharterschool.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/FOIL.pdf


  

         

                
           

       

          
    

    
   

        

            

                   

  

     

    

        

                

           

       

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE 
authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward Charter Goals as per their 
currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2023. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked 
optional for administrative purposes only. 
Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, 

and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals no later than 

November 1, 2023. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The following tables reflect formatting in the online portal required for Board of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE 

authorized charter schools only. These charter schools should report all Progress Toward Charter Goals as per their 

currently approved charters no later than November 1, 2023. 
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 

Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Toward Attainment of 

Goal 

Goal - Met, Not Met 

or Unable to Assess 

If not met, describe 

efforts the school will 

take to meet goal. If 

unable to assess 

goal, type N/A for 

Not Applicable 

Academic Goal 1 

Exceed overall 

proficiency rates of 

local district on NYS 

ELA assessment 

NYS 3-8 Assessment Met N/A 

Academic Goal 2 

Exceed overall 

proficiency rates of 

local district on NYS 

Math assessment 

NYS 3-8 Assessment Met N/A 

Academic Goal 3 

Exceed overall 

proficiency rates of 

ELL students across 

local district on NYS 

assessment 

NYS 3-8 Assessment Met N/A 

Academic Goal 4 

Exceed overall 

proficiency rates of 

SWD students 

across local district 

on NYS assessment 

NYS 3-8 Assessment Met 

Academic Goal 5 

Students will 

meet/exceed 90% 

growth using i-Ready 

Diagnostic 

Assessments across 

grades 3-9 

i-Ready Met 

Academic Goal 6 

Academic Goal 7 

Academic Goal 8 

Academic Goal 9 
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Academic Goal 10 

2. Do have more academic goals to add? 

No 

4. ORGANIZATION GOALS 

For the 2022-2023 school year, any organization goals that 
cannot be evaluated due to school closure resulting in a lack 
of data and changes in testing, surveying, and other usual 
practices should be reported as “N/A”. 
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Organization Goals 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Goal - Met, Not Met, 

or Unable to Assess 

If not met, describe 

efforts the school will 

take to meet goal. If 

unable to assess 

goal, type N/A for 

Not Applicable 

Org Goal 1 1. Academic 

Excellence: 

Fostering a culture 

of high academic 

standards and 

ensuring students 

receive a quality 

education that 

prepares them for 

college, careers, and 

lifelong learning. 

1. **Define SMART 

Goals:** First, clearly 

define your SMART 

goals. Ensure that 

each goal is specific, 

measurable, 

achievable, relevant, 

and time-bound. The 

goal should explicitly 

state what is to be 

achieved, how it will 

be measured, when 

it will be 

accomplished, and 

who is responsible 

for it. 

2. **Establish 

Baselines:** Identify 

where you are 

starting from in 

relation to your goal. 

This will be your 

baseline data. 

3. **Identify Key 

Performance 

Indicators (KPIs):** 

Determine what 

metrics or KPIs you 

will use to measure 

the progress towards 

each goal. These 

should align closely 

with your goals and 

Met 
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be quantifiable. 

4. **Create a 

Tracking System:** 

Develop a system to 

track progress 

towards each 

SMART goal. This 

could be a 

spreadsheet, a 

software platform, or 

another tool that 

allows you to input 

data regularly and 

visualize your 

progress. 

5. **Regularly Collect 

and Input Data:** 

On a regular basis 

(which may vary 

depending on the 

nature of the goal), 

collect and input 

data on your KPIs 

into your tracking 

system. 

6. **Analyze Data:** 

Regularly review the 

data to assess 

progress towards 

each goal. Look for 

trends and patterns. 

Are you on track to 

achieve your goal by 

your target date? If 

not, why not? 

7. **Adjust 

Strategies:** If your 

data analysis shows 

that you are not on 

track to meet your 

goal, adjust your 

strategies 

19 / 59 



  

 

 

 

 

  

  

   

 

  

 

  

 

  

   

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

accordingly. This 

could involve 

changing your 

tactics, allocating 

more resources, or 

adjusting the goal 

itself if it is proving 

unachievable. 

8. **Communicate 

Progress:** 

Regularly 

communicate 

progress towards 

SMART goals to all 

relevant 

stakeholders. This 

can help maintain 

accountability, 

motivate continued 

effort, and solicit 

input on how to 

overcome any 

challenges that are 

impeding progress. 

9. **Review and 

Refine:** Once a 

SMART goal has 

been achieved, or 

the timeframe for 

achieving it has 

elapsed, review the 

process. What 

worked well? What 

didn't? Use these 

insights to refine 

future goal-setting 

and measurement 

processes. 

Org Goal 2 2. 21st Century 

Skills: Equipping 

students with the 

knowledge, skills, 

1. **Define SMART 

Goals:** First, clearly 

define your SMART 

goals. Ensure that 

Met 

20 / 59 



  

 

  

   

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

   

   

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

   

  

 

 

 

 

   

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

   

  

  

 

  

  

  

 

 

and competencies 

required for success 

in the modern world, 

including critical 

thinking, problem-

solving, 

collaboration, 

creativity, and 

technological 

literacy. 

each goal is specific, 

measurable, 

achievable, relevant, 

and time-bound. The 

goal should explicitly 

state what is to be 

achieved, how it will 

be measured, when 

it will be 

accomplished, and 

who is responsible 

for it. 

2. **Establish 

Baselines:** Identify 

where you are 

starting from in 

relation to your goal. 

This will be your 

baseline data. 

3. **Identify Key 

Performance 

Indicators (KPIs):** 

Determine what 

metrics or KPIs you 

will use to measure 

the progress towards 

each goal. These 

should align closely 

with your goals and 

be quantifiable. 

4. **Create a 

Tracking System:** 

Develop a system to 

track progress 

towards each 

SMART goal. This 

could be a 

spreadsheet, a 

software platform, or 

another tool that 

allows you to input 

data regularly and 

visualize your 

21 / 59 



  

 

  

   

 

  

   

  

   

  

  

 

  

  

 

   

   

   

 

 

  

 

    

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

   

 

  

progress. 

5. **Regularly Collect 

and Input Data:** 

On a regular basis 

(which may vary 

depending on the 

nature of the goal), 

collect and input 

data on your KPIs 

into your tracking 

system. 

6. **Analyze Data:** 

Regularly review the 

data to assess 

progress towards 

each goal. Look for 

trends and patterns. 

Are you on track to 

achieve your goal by 

your target date? If 

not, why not? 

7. **Adjust 

Strategies:** If your 

data analysis shows 

that you are not on 

track to meet your 

goal, adjust your 

strategies 

accordingly. This 

could involve 

changing your 

tactics, allocating 

more resources, or 

adjusting the goal 

itself if it is proving 

unachievable. 

8. **Communicate 

Progress:** 

Regularly 

communicate 

progress towards 

SMART goals to all 

22 / 59 



  

 

  

 

  

   

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

   

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

   

   

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

  

relevant 

stakeholders. This 

can help maintain 

accountability, 

motivate continued 

effort, and solicit 

input on how to 

overcome any 

challenges that are 

impeding progress. 

9. **Review and 

Refine:** Once a 

SMART goal has 

been achieved, or 

the timeframe for 

achieving it has 

elapsed, review the 

process. What 

worked well? What 

didn't? Use these 

insights to refine 

future goal-setting 

and measurement 

processes. 

Org Goal 3 3. Community 

Engagement: 

Actively involving 

parents, families, 

and the broader 

community in the 

education process, 

fostering strong 

partnerships to 

support student 

success and well-

being. 

1. **Define SMART 

Goals:** First, clearly 

define your SMART 

goals. Ensure that 

each goal is specific, 

measurable, 

achievable, relevant, 

and time-bound. The 

goal should explicitly 

state what is to be 

achieved, how it will 

be measured, when 

it will be 

accomplished, and 

who is responsible 

for it. 

2. **Establish 

Baselines:** Identify 

where you are 

Partially Met Community 

Engagement Plan 

for Riverhead 

Charter School 

Objective: Actively 

involve parents, 

families, and the 

broader community 

in the education 

process, fostering 

strong partnerships 

to support student 

success and well-

being. 

1. Parent and Family 

Workshops: 

a. Conduct regular 

workshops and 
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starting from in 

relation to your goal. 

This will be your 

baseline data. 

3. **Identify Key 

Performance 

Indicators (KPIs):** 

Determine what 

metrics or KPIs you 

will use to measure 

the progress towards 

each goal. These 

should align closely 

with your goals and 

be quantifiable. 

4. **Create a 

Tracking System:** 

Develop a system to 

track progress 

towards each 

SMART goal. This 

could be a 

spreadsheet, a 

software platform, or 

another tool that 

allows you to input 

data regularly and 

visualize your 

progress. 

5. **Regularly Collect 

and Input Data:** 

On a regular basis 

(which may vary 

depending on the 

nature of the goal), 

collect and input 

data on your KPIs 

into your tracking 

system. 

6. **Analyze Data:** 

Regularly review the 

data to assess 

informational 

sessions for parents 

and families on 

topics such as 

effective parenting 

strategies, 

understanding the 

school curriculum, 

supporting 

homework 

completion, and 

promoting student 

well-being. 

b. Collaborate with 

local organizations, 

educational experts, 

and community 

members to deliver 

these workshops. 

c. Offer sessions in 

multiple languages 

to ensure inclusivity 

and accessibility for 

all families. 

2. Parent-Teacher 

Association (PTA): 

a. Establish an 

active and engaged 

PTA that encourages 

parents and 

guardians to 

participate in school-

related activities and 

decision-making 

processes. 

b. Organize regular 

PTA meetings to 

discuss key 

educational topics, 

foster 

communication 

between parents 

and teachers, and 

address concerns. 

c. Collaborate with 
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progress towards 

each goal. Look for 

trends and patterns. 

Are you on track to 

achieve your goal by 

your target date? If 

not, why not? 

7. **Adjust 

Strategies:** If your 

data analysis shows 

that you are not on 

track to meet your 

goal, adjust your 

strategies 

accordingly. This 

could involve 

changing your 

tactics, allocating 

more resources, or 

adjusting the goal 

itself if it is proving 

unachievable. 

8. **Communicate 

Progress:** 

Regularly 

communicate 

progress towards 

SMART goals to all 

relevant 

stakeholders. This 

can help maintain 

accountability, 

motivate continued 

effort, and solicit 

input on how to 

overcome any 

challenges that are 

impeding progress. 

9. **Review and 

Refine:** Once a 

SMART goal has 

been achieved, or 

the timeframe for 

the PTA to organize 

fundraising events, 

community service 

projects, and school-

wide celebrations to 

promote a sense of 

belonging and 

community. 

3. Parent 

Volunteering 

Program: 

a. Develop a 

structured program 

that encourages 

parents and 

community members 

to volunteer their 

time and skills at the 

school. 

b. Identify various 

volunteering 

opportunities, such 

as classroom 

assistance, library 

support, event 

organization, and 

mentoring programs. 

c. Provide necessary 

training and 

orientations to 

ensure parents and 

volunteers are 

equipped with the 

knowledge and skills 

needed for their 

assigned roles. 

4. Community 

Partnerships: 

a. Establish 

partnerships with 

local businesses, 

community 

organizations, and 

educational 
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achieving it has 

elapsed, review the 

process. What 

worked well? What 

didn't? Use these 

insights to refine 

future goal-setting 

and measurement 

processes. 

institutions to create 

opportunities for 

students and 

families to engage 

with the broader 

community. 

b. Collaborate with 

community partners 

to offer internships, 

job shadowing, and 

career exploration 

programs for 

students. 

c. Organize 

community events, 

such as science 

fairs, art exhibitions, 

and cultural festivals, 

to showcase the 

talents and 

achievements of 

students and foster 

community 

participation. 

5. Open 

Communication 

Channels: 

a. Maintain regular 

and effective 

communication 

channels with 

parents and families 

through newsletters, 

emails, websites, 

and social media 

platforms. 

b. Encourage two-

way communication 

by providing 

opportunities for 

parents to share 

feedback, 

suggestions, and 

concerns. 

c. Establish a 

26 / 59 



  

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

dedicated parent 

helpline or email 

address to address 

parent inquiries and 

concerns promptly 

and efficiently. 

6. Home-School 

Collaborations: 

a. Foster strong 

partnerships 

between teachers 

and parents by 

organizing regular 

parent-teacher 

conferences and 

progress reports. 

b. Encourage 

teachers to provide 

ongoing updates on 

student progress 

and classroom 

activities through 

online platforms or 

communication 

apps. 

c. Provide resources 

and materials for 

parents to support 

their child's learning 

at home, such as 

reading lists, 

educational 

websites, and 

learning activities. 

7. Outreach 

Programs: 

a. Develop outreach 

programs to engage 

families who may 

face barriers to 

involvement, such as 

language barriers or 

limited access to 

transportation. 
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b. Offer translation 

services, multilingual 

materials, and 

transportation 

assistance to ensure 

inclusivity and equal 

participation. 

c. Collaborate with 

community 

organizations to 

provide resources, 

workshops, and 

support specifically 

tailored to the needs 

of underrepresented 

or marginalized 

families. 

Evaluation and 

Assessment: 

Regularly assess the 

effectiveness of the 

community 

engagement 

initiatives through 

surveys, feedback 

forms, and focus 

groups with parents, 

families, and 

community members. 

Use this feedback to 

make necessary 

adjustments and 

improvements to the 

plan. 

By implementing this 

comprehensive 

community 

engagement plan, 

Riverhead Charter 

School can actively 

involve parents, 

families, and the 

broader community 

in the education 
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process, fostering 

strong partnerships 

to support student 

success and well-

being. 

Org Goal 4 4. Equity and 

Inclusion: Ensuring 

equitable access to 

educational 

opportunities for all 

students, regardless 

of their background, 

socioeconomic 

status, ethnicity, or 

special needs, and 

actively promoting 

diversity, inclusion, 

and cultural 

competence. 

1. **Define SMART 

Goals:** First, clearly 

define your SMART 

goals. Ensure that 

each goal is specific, 

measurable, 

achievable, relevant, 

and time-bound. The 

goal should explicitly 

state what is to be 

achieved, how it will 

be measured, when 

it will be 

accomplished, and 

who is responsible 

for it. 

2. **Establish 

Baselines:** Identify 

where you are 

starting from in 

relation to your goal. 

This will be your 

baseline data. 

3. **Identify Key 

Performance 

Indicators (KPIs):** 

Determine what 

metrics or KPIs you 

will use to measure 

the progress towards 

each goal. These 

should align closely 

with your goals and 

be quantifiable. 

4. **Create a 

Tracking System:** 

Develop a system to 

Met 
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track progress 

towards each 

SMART goal. This 

could be a 

spreadsheet, a 

software platform, or 

another tool that 

allows you to input 

data regularly and 

visualize your 

progress. 

5. **Regularly Collect 

and Input Data:** 

On a regular basis 

(which may vary 

depending on the 

nature of the goal), 

collect and input 

data on your KPIs 

into your tracking 

system. 

6. **Analyze Data:** 

Regularly review the 

data to assess 

progress towards 

each goal. Look for 

trends and patterns. 

Are you on track to 

achieve your goal by 

your target date? If 

not, why not? 

7. **Adjust 

Strategies:** If your 

data analysis shows 

that you are not on 

track to meet your 

goal, adjust your 

strategies 

accordingly. This 

could involve 

changing your 

tactics, allocating 

more resources, or 
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adjusting the goal 

itself if it is proving 

unachievable. 

8. **Communicate 

Progress:** 

Regularly 

communicate 

progress towards 

SMART goals to all 

relevant 

stakeholders. This 

can help maintain 

accountability, 

motivate continued 

effort, and solicit 

input on how to 

overcome any 

challenges that are 

impeding progress. 

9. **Review and 

Refine:** Once a 

SMART goal has 

been achieved, or 

the timeframe for 

achieving it has 

elapsed, review the 

process. What 

worked well? What 

didn't? Use these 

insights to refine 

future goal-setting 

and measurement 

processes. 

Org Goal 5 5. Innovation and 

Continuous 

Improvement: 

Encouraging a 

culture of innovation, 

embracing new 

teaching methods, 

technologies, and 

educational 

practices that 

1. **Define SMART 

Goals:** First, clearly 

define your SMART 

goals. Ensure that 

each goal is specific, 

measurable, 

achievable, relevant, 

and time-bound. The 

goal should explicitly 

state what is to be 

Met 
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enhance student 

learning outcomes, 

and continually 

evaluating and 

refining educational 

programs based on 

data and evidence. 

achieved, how it will 

be measured, when 

it will be 

accomplished, and 

who is responsible 

for it. 

2. **Establish 

Baselines:** Identify 

where you are 

starting from in 

relation to your goal. 

This will be your 

baseline data. 

3. **Identify Key 

Performance 

Indicators (KPIs):** 

Determine what 

metrics or KPIs you 

will use to measure 

the progress towards 

each goal. These 

should align closely 

with your goals and 

be quantifiable. 

4. **Create a 

Tracking System:** 

Develop a system to 

track progress 

towards each 

SMART goal. This 

could be a 

spreadsheet, a 

software platform, or 

another tool that 

allows you to input 

data regularly and 

visualize your 

progress. 

5. **Regularly Collect 

and Input Data:** 

On a regular basis 

(which may vary 
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depending on the 

nature of the goal), 

collect and input 

data on your KPIs 

into your tracking 

system. 

6. **Analyze Data:** 

Regularly review the 

data to assess 

progress towards 

each goal. Look for 

trends and patterns. 

Are you on track to 

achieve your goal by 

your target date? If 

not, why not? 

7. **Adjust 

Strategies:** If your 

data analysis shows 

that you are not on 

track to meet your 

goal, adjust your 

strategies 

accordingly. This 

could involve 

changing your 

tactics, allocating 

more resources, or 

adjusting the goal 

itself if it is proving 

unachievable. 

8. **Communicate 

Progress:** 

Regularly 

communicate 

progress towards 

SMART goals to all 

relevant 

stakeholders. This 

can help maintain 

accountability, 

motivate continued 

effort, and solicit 
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input on how to 

overcome any 

challenges that are 

impeding progress. 

9. **Review and 

Refine:** Once a 

SMART goal has 

been achieved, or 

the timeframe for 

achieving it has 

elapsed, review the 

process. What 

worked well? What 

didn't? Use these 

insights to refine 

future goal-setting 

and measurement 

processes. 

Org Goal 6 6. Financial 

Sustainability: 

Establishing sound 

financial 

management 

practices to ensure 

the long-term viability 

and sustainability of 

the school, 

optimizing resources, 

and seeking external 

funding and 

partnerships when 

necessary. 

1. **Define SMART 

Goals:** First, clearly 

define your SMART 

goals. Ensure that 

each goal is specific, 

measurable, 

achievable, relevant, 

and time-bound. The 

goal should explicitly 

state what is to be 

achieved, how it will 

be measured, when 

it will be 

accomplished, and 

who is responsible 

for it. 

2. **Establish 

Baselines:** Identify 

where you are 

starting from in 

relation to your goal. 

This will be your 

baseline data. 

3. **Identify Key 

Met 
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Performance 

Indicators (KPIs):** 

Determine what 

metrics or KPIs you 

will use to measure 

the progress towards 

each goal. These 

should align closely 

with your goals and 

be quantifiable. 

4. **Create a 

Tracking System:** 

Develop a system to 

track progress 

towards each 

SMART goal. This 

could be a 

spreadsheet, a 

software platform, or 

another tool that 

allows you to input 

data regularly and 

visualize your 

progress. 

5. **Regularly Collect 

and Input Data:** 

On a regular basis 

(which may vary 

depending on the 

nature of the goal), 

collect and input 

data on your KPIs 

into your tracking 

system. 

6. **Analyze Data:** 

Regularly review the 

data to assess 

progress towards 

each goal. Look for 

trends and patterns. 

Are you on track to 

achieve your goal by 

your target date? If 
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not, why not? 

7. **Adjust 

Strategies:** If your 

data analysis shows 

that you are not on 

track to meet your 

goal, adjust your 

strategies 

accordingly. This 

could involve 

changing your 

tactics, allocating 

more resources, or 

adjusting the goal 

itself if it is proving 

unachievable. 

8. **Communicate 

Progress:** 

Regularly 

communicate 

progress towards 

SMART goals to all 

relevant 

stakeholders. This 

can help maintain 

accountability, 

motivate continued 

effort, and solicit 

input on how to 

overcome any 

challenges that are 

impeding progress. 

9. **Review and 

Refine:** Once a 

SMART goal has 

been achieved, or 

the timeframe for 

achieving it has 

elapsed, review the 

process. What 

worked well? What 

didn't? Use these 

insights to refine 
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future goal-setting 

and measurement 

processes. 

Org Goal 7 

Org Goal 8 

Org Goal 9 

Org Goal 10 

Org Goal 11 

Org Goal 12 

Org Goal 13 

Org Goal 14 

Org Goal 15 

Org Goal 16 

Org Goal 17 

Org Goal 18 

Org Goal 19 

Org Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational goals to add? 

No 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 
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2022-2023 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Goal - Met, Not Met, 

or Partially Met 

If not met, describe 

efforts the school will 

take to meet goal. 

Financial Goal 1 

Increasing Revenue 

by increasing 

enrollment 

The enrollment 

numbers are 

reviewed monthly by 

the leadership team 

and discussed at the 

monthly Board 

meetings. Currently, 

we are meeting the 

target of 89% for 

aggregate 

enrollment. 

Met 

Financial Goal 2 Increasing Waitlist 

The waitlist is 

monitored monthly 

by the leadership 

team and discussed 

on a quarterly basis 

at the Board 

meetings. We closely 

monitor the size of 

the waitlist, which 

serves as an 

indicator of the 

interest and demand 

for enrollment in the 

school. 

Met 

Financial Goal 3 Budget and 

Monitoring 

The annual budget 

is adopted by the 

Board. Continuous 

comparisons 

between actual 

spending and 

budgetary amounts 

are monitored on a 

monthly basis by the 

leadership team. 

This is then 

discussed quarterly 

with stakeholders at 

Met 
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the Board meetings. 

We use the financial 

statements to 

identify areas where 

we may be 

overspending or 

where we have 

saved. 

Financial Goal 4 Financial Analysis 

We monitor revenue 

and expenditures 

throughout the year 

to ensure that we 

can meet our long-

term debt and 

financial obligations. 

Additionally, we 

make sure that the 

revenue generated 

from increased 

enrollment covers 

any associated costs 

and contributes to 

the school's financial 

sustainability. 

Met 

Financial Goal 5 

Efficient Accounts 

Receivable 

management 

We monitor the 

accounts receivable 

on a monthly basis 

and discuss the 

results quarterly at 

the Board meetings. 

Reducing the 

average days in 

accounts receivable 

serves as indicator 

of efficient credit and 

collections 

management. This 

method enhances 

cash flow and 

mitigates the risk of 

bad debts. 

Met 
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7. Do have more financial goals to add? 

No 

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Accountability Plan Progress Reports 

Incomplete - Hidden from applicant 

Instructions 
SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY- Complete Template and Upload to Epicenter 

SUNY-authorized charter schools must download an Accountability Plan Progress Report template at Accountability 
Plan Progress Report. After completing, SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the document into the Annual 
Report Portal, and into the SUNY Epicenter document management system by September 15, 2023. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements 

Completed - Oct 30 2023 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements and related documents in PDF format 
into the Annual Report Portal and into the SUNY Epicenter document management system no later than November 
1, 2023. SUNY-authorized charter schools are asked to ensure that security features such as password protection 
are turned off. 

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools must upload final, audited financial 
statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2023. Upload the independent auditor’s report, 
any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as one submission, combined into a PDF file, 
ensuring that security features such as password protections are removed from all school uploaded documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: This task appears as visible and optional task in the online portal until August 1 2023 but will 
be identified as a required task thereafter and due on November 1, 2023. This is a required task, and it is 
marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

RHCS FS 8 

Filename: RHCS_FS_8.14_Final.pdf Size: 315.6 kB 

Entry 4a – Audited Financial Report Template (SUNY) 
Incomplete - Hidden from applicant 

Instructions - SUNY-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

SUNY-authorized schools must download the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Statement Template” at 
http://www.newyorkcharters.org/fiscal/. After completing, schools must upload the document into the Annual Report 
Portal and into the SUNY Epicenter document management system no later than November 1, 2023. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

Entry 4b – Audited Financial Report Template (BOR/NYC/BOE) 
40 / 59 
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Completed - Oct 30 2023 

Instructions - Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Regents-authorized schools must download and complete the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited Financial Report 
Template” from the online portal or the 2022-2023 Annual Reports webpage. Upload the completed file in Excel 
format and submit by November 1, 2023. 

Please complete one spreadsheet at the Education Corporation level and submit the same spreadsheet for 
each of the schools. 

EDUCATION CORPORATIONS WITH MORE THAN ONE SCHOOL SHOULD COMPLETE THE EXCEL 
SPREADSHEET FOR THE EDUCATION CORPORATION AS A WHOLE, NOT FOR THE INDIVIDUAL SCHOOLS. 
PLEASE SUBMIT THE SAME EXCEL SPREADSHEET FOR EACH OF THE SCHOOLS. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

audited-financial-report-template-nysed 

Filename: audited-financial-report-template_MOacAA7.xlsx Size: 73.2 kB 

Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents 

Completed - Oct 30 2023 

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial documents and submit by 
November 1, 2023. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an explanation if not applicable or available. 
For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because the school did not expend federal funds of more than 
the $750,000 Threshold.” 

1. Advisory and/or Management letter 
2. Federal Single Audit 
3. Agreed-Upon Procedure Report 
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1] 
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations 

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per school is 
$100,000. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

SAS-114 - Final 

Filename: SAS-114_-_Final.pdf Size: 202.4 kB 

Entry 4d - Financial Contact Information 

Completed - Oct 30 2023 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter financial contact information directly into the 
form within the portal by November 1, 2023. 

Form for "Financial Contact Information" 
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1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information 

School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal School Based Fiscal 

Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone 

Nicola Graham ngraham@rcsli.org 631-369-5800 

2. Audit Firm Contact Information 

School Audit Contact 

Name 

School Audit Contact 

Email 

School Audit Contact 

Phone 

Years Working With 

This Audit Firm 

Ken Cerini 
kcerini@ceriniandass 

ociates.com 
631-582-1600 20 

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced financial services firm. 

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years With 

Person Address Firm 

Corporate 

Accounting 

Solutions, 

LLC 

Mario Mejia 

515 

Broadhollow 

Road, Suite 

800 

Melville, NY 

11747 

mmejia@corp 

acctgsolutions 

.com 

516-486-1020 9 

Entry 5 – Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget 
Completed - Oct 30 2023 

SUNY-authorized charter schools should download the 2023-2024 Budget and Quarterly Report Template and the 
2023-2024 Budget Narrative Questionnaire from the SUNY website and upload the completed templates into the 
Annual Report Portal and into the Epicenter document management system. Due November 1, 2023. 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a copy of the school’s FY22 
Budget using the 2023-2024 Budget Template into the Annual Report Portal or from the Annual Report website. Due 
November 1, 2023. 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-explanatory. 
Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that indicates the assumption 
being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the 
application narrative. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

updated-2023-2024-ar-budget-template 

Filename: updated-2023-2024-ar-budget-templ_yVqsh3S.xlsx Size: 36.8 kB 
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Entry 6 – Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest Form 

Completed - Aug 1 2023 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter school education corporation 
governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2022-2023 school year must complete and sign a 
Trustee Disclosure of Financial Interest Form is due on August 1, 2023. Acceptable signature formats include: 

Digitally certified PDF signature (i.e., DocuSign) 
Manual signature (1. download to print, 2. manually sign, 3. scan signed document to PDF, and 4. upload 
into portal) 

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. The education 
corporation is responsible for ensuring that each member who served on the board during the 2022-2023 
school year completes the form. 

Charter schools must submit the latest version of the form. Forms completed from past years will not be accepted. 

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to complete a 
separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Trustee Disclosure of Financial 
Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the governing education 
corporation. 

SwiftScan Aug 1, 2023 7 

Filename: SwiftScan_Aug_1_2023_7.34_AM.pdf Size: 3.4 MB 

20230717_kJLciJ Chjcuhr Sd l^ogl 

Filename: 20230717_kJLciJ_Chjcuhr_Sd_logl.pdf Size: 156.5 kB 

2022-2023 annual-report-current-and-former-trustee-financial-disclosure-form 

Filename: 2022-2023_annual-report-current-an_sLXyJ9H.pdf Size: 470.2 kB 

2023-07-31 13-09 

Filename: 2023-07-31_13-09.pdf Size: 1.8 MB 

2022-2023 annual-report-current-and-former-trustee-financial-disclosure-form-1 

Filename: 2022-2023_annual-report-current-an_LHEH0yu.pdf Size: 430.6 kB 

Entry 7 BOT Membership Table 

Completed - Aug 1 2023 

Instructions 

Required of ALL charter schools 
ALL charter schools or education corporations governing multiple schools must complete the Board of Trustees 
Membership Table within the online portal. Please be sure to include and identify parents who are members of the 
Board of Trustees and indicate whether parents are voting or non-voting members. 

Entry 7 BOT Table 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
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2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information 

for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees. 

Authorizer: 

Who is the authorizer of your charter school? 

Board of Regents 
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1. 2022-2023 Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

Trustee Trustee Position Committe Voting Number Start End Board 

Name Email on the e Member of Date of Date of Meetings 

Address Board Affiliation Per By- Complet Current Current Attended 

s Laws ed Terms Term Term During 

(Y/N) Served (MM/DD/ (MM/DD/ 2022-

YYYY) YYYY) 2023 

Aimee 
Vice Health & 8/01/202 07/31/20 

1 LoMonac Yes 3 10 
Chair Safety 3 24 

o 

David Academi 08/01/20 07/31/20 
2 Chair Yes 2 10 

Edwards cs 23 24 

Maria Treasure 08/01/20 07/31/20 
3 Finance Yes 1 11 

Cintron r 23 23 

Zenobia Trustee/ Legal 08/01/20 07/31/20 
4 Yes 4 10 

Hartfield Member Rep 23 24 

5 
Natasha 

Jeffries 

Secretar 

y 

Academi 

cs 
Yes 2 

08/01/20 

23 

07/31/20 

24 
10 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1a. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees? 

No 
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2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 

2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to all 

trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2023 5 

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2022-2023 0 

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during 2022-
1 

2023 

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws, 
5 

Resolution or Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2022-2023 

10 

4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2023-2024 

12 

Total number of Voting Members on June 30, 2023: 

0 

Total number of Voting Members added during the 2022-2023 school year: 

0 
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1 

Total number of Voting Members who departed during the 2022-2023 school year: 

Total Maximum Number of Voting members in 2022-2023, as set by the board in bylaws, resolution, or minutes: 

9 

Total number of Non-Voting Members on June 30, 2023: 

1 

Total number of Non-Voting Members added during the 2022-2023 school year: 

0 

Total number of Non-Voting Members who departed during the 2022-2023 school year: 

0 

Total Maximum Number of Non-Voting members in 2022-2023, as set by the board in bylaws, resolution or 

minutes: 

1 

Board members attending 8 or fewer meetings during 2022-2023 

Thank you. 
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Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes 

Completed - Jul 28 2023 

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY 

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2022-June 2023), which should match 
the number of meetings held during the 2022-2023 school year, as indicated in the above table. The minutes 
provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and may be uploaded individually or 
as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted by August 1, 2023. 

Board Minutes for the Fiscal Year 2022-23 

Filename: Board_Minutes_for_the_Fiscal_Year_2022-23.pdf Size: 2.8 MB 

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention 

Completed - Jul 31 2023 

Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Describe the good faith efforts the charter school has made in 2022-2023 toward meeting targets to attract and 
retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities (SWDs), English Language Learners (ELLs), and students who are 
economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress toward meeting 
its enrollment and retention targets in 2023-2024. 

*SUNY-authorized charter schools 

The education corporation must include a plan for the charter to meet or exceed enrollment and retention targets 
established by the SUNY Trustees for students with disabilities, ELLs, and students who are eligible to participate in 
the FRPL program. See the enrollment and retention target calculator to find specific targets. 

Entry 9 Enrollment and Retention of Special Populations 
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Good Faith Efforts to Meet Recruitment Targets (Attract) 

Economically Disadvantaged 

English Language Learners 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 

2022-2023 

Riverhead Charter School has 

undertaken efforts throughout the 

charter period to attract and retain 

economically disadvantaged 

students. This occurs by directing 

outreach and other recruitment 

efforts to local areas that serve 

economically disadvantaged 

students. Families are invited to tour 

the school to see what programs 

and resources they have to offer. 

Riverhead Charter School has 

undertaken efforts throughout the 

charter period to attract and retain 

English language learners. School 

literature, in both English and 

Spanish, is distributed to 

prospective students' families During 

the enrollment process, a Home 

Language Questionnaire (HLQ) is 

conducted to every incoming 

student’s family. During the HLQ it 

will be determined if a student has 

already been identified as an 

English Language Learner (ELL) or 

if the student needs to receive the 

NYSITELL to identify if they are an 

ELL student. Once the identification 

process has been completed, the 

student will be placed in the 

appropriate learning environment. 

Families are invited into the school 

building to tour the facilities, meet 

with administration, and learn more 

about the English as a New 

Language program. 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2023-

2024 

Riverhead Charter School will 

continue to undertake efforts 

throughout the charter period to 

attract and retain economically 

disadvantaged students. This 

occurs by directing outreach and 

other recruitment efforts to local 

areas that serve economically 

disadvantaged students. Families 

are invited to tour the school to see 

what programs and resources they 

have to offer. 

Riverhead Charter School will 

continue to undertake efforts 

throughout the charter period to 

attract and retain English language 

learners. School literature, in both 

English and Spanish, will be 

distributed to prospective students' 

families During the enrollment 

process, a Home Language 

Questionnaire (HLQ) will continue to 

be conducted to every incoming 

student’s family. During the HLQ it 

will be determined if a student has 

already been identified as an 

English Language Learner (ELL) or 

if the student needs to receive the 

NYSITELL to identify if they are an 

ELL student. Once the identification 

process has been completed, the 

student will be placed in the 

appropriate learning environment. 

Families will be invited into the 

school building to tour the facilities, 

meet with administration, and learn 

more about the English as a New 

Language program. 
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Students with Disabilities 

Riverhead Charter School has 

undertaken efforts throughout the 

charter period to attract and retain 

students with disabilities. During the 

enrollment time, families are invited 

into the school building to tour the 

facilities, meet with administration, 

and learn more about the Special 

Education programs offered. 

Incoming students with IEPs have 

their IEPs thoroughly reviewed by 

the special education administrator, 

as well as any testing that has 

already been conducted. The 

special education administrator will 

work closely with the families to 

develop a plan that meets the 

students' programming and services. 

If a student is currently in the referral 

process or the family would like to 

begin the referral process upon 

recruitment, the special education 

administrator will work closely with 

the family and the student to 

complete the process. 

Riverhead Charter School will 

continue to undertake efforts 

throughout the charter period to 

attract and retain students with 

disabilities. During the enrollment 

time, families will be invited into the 

school building to tour the facilities, 

meet with administration, and learn 

more about the Special Education 

programs offered. Incoming 

students with IEPs will have their 

IEPs thoroughly reviewed by the 

special education administrator, as 

well as any testing that has already 

been conducted. The special 

education administrator will work 

closely with the families to develop a 

plan that meets the students' 

programming and services. If a 

student is currently in the referral 

process or the family would like to 

begin the referral process upon 

recruitment, the special education 

administrator will work closely with 

the family and the student to 

complete the process. 
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Good Faith Efforts To Meet Enrollment Retention Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2022-

2023 

Our students and families have 

access to our social work 

department when they enter our 

Economically Disadvantaged school. The social worker meets with 

the families and the students to 

determine their needs within school 

as well as outside school. 

Our students begin to receive 

English as a New Language 

Services (ENL) once they are 

identified as English Language 

Learners (ELL). We have at least 

one ENL teacher per grade level 

that supports our learners. The ENL 
English Language Learners 

teachers co-teach with the general 

education teachers during English 

Language Arts based classes. The 

ENL teacher also has the 

opportunity throughout the school 

day to work with their students in 

small group instruction. 

Students with Disabilities Our special education program 

offers resource room and consult 

teachers for grades kindergarten 

through first grade. There are also 

Academic Intervention Services 

offered to any student that qualifies 

for additional assistance in math 

and reading. As students enter the 

second grade, we offer Integrated 

Co-Teaching (ICT) classes to 

support our students with 

disabilities. Our ICT classes continue 

throughout high school and 

resource room does as well. There 

are also Academic Intervention 

Describe Retention Plans in 2023-

2024 

Our students and families will 

continue to have access to our 

social work department when they 

enter our school. The social worker 

meets with the families and the 

students to determine their needs 

within school as well as outside 

school. 

Our students will continue to begin 

to receive English as a New 

Language Services (ENL) once they 

are identified as English Language 

Learners (ELL). There will be at 

least one ENL teacher per grade 

level that supports our learners. The 

ENL teachers co-teach with the 

general education teachers during 

English Language Arts based 

classes. The ENL teacher also has 

the opportunity throughout the 

school day to work with their 

students in small group instruction. 

Our special education program will 

continue to offer resource room and 

consult teachers for grades 

kindergarten through first grade. 

There will also be Academic 

Intervention Services offered to any 

student that qualifies for additional 

assistance in math and reading. As 

students enter the second grade, 

we offer Integrated Co-Teaching 

(ICT) classes to support our 

students with disabilities. Our ICT 

classes will continue throughout 

high school and resource room does 

as well. There are also Academic 

Services offered to our students in Intervention Services offered to our 

third grade through middle school. students in third grade through 
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Students are able to receive any middle school. Students are able to 

additional related services receive any additional related 

throughout the school day. services throughout the school day. 

Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition 

Completed - Jul 26 2023 

Form for "Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition" 
Revised to Employee Fingerprint Requirements Attestation 
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A. TEACH System – Employee Clearance 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office of 

School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes paraprofessionals and 

other school personnel who are provided or assigned by the district of location, or related/contracted service 

providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file 

of each employee. For the safety of all students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the 

employment of individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been terminated, the school 

must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH system. 

In the Annual Report, charter schools are asked to confirm that all employees have been cleared through the NYSED 

TEACH system; and, if denied clearance, confirm that the individual or employee has been removed from the TEACH 

system, and is not employed by the school. 

1. Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for prospective 

employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the school’s emergency 

conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school receives notification from NYSED 

regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all prospective employees through the NYSED 

TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency 

conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours after approval by the board. 

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency conditional 

clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal. 

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information can be 

found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo 10-2019. 

[1] Employees who must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors, security 

personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school building. This 

includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or assigned by the district of 

location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at 

http://www.nysed.gov/common/nysed/files/programs/charter-schools/employeefingerprintoct19.pdf or visit the NYSED 

website at: http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html for more information regarding who 

must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2. 
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B. Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for prospective 

employees. This is because the school must request clearance through NYSED TEACH, and the school’s emergency 

conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once the school receives notification from NYSED 

regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided for all prospective employees through the NYSED 

TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request is submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency 

conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours after approval by the board. 

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency conditional 

clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal. 

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information can be 

found in the memo at NYSED CSO Employee Clearance and Fingerprint Memo 10-2019. 

Attestation 

Responses Selected: 

I hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements. 

Entry 11 Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

Completed - Jul 31 2023 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New York State 
Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified teachers are those not certified pursuant to 
the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. 

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 full-
time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

Entry 11 Uncertified Teachers 

School Name: 
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Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New York State 

Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified teachers are those not certified 

pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. 

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 

full-time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

If more than one line applies to a teacher, please include in only one FTE uncertified category. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

CATEGORY A. 30% OR 5 UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS WHICHEVER IS LESS 

FTE Count 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least three 

years of elementary, middle or secondary classroom 0 

teaching experience (as of June 30, 2023) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
0 

tenure track college faculty (as of June 30, 2023) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of 
0 

Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 2023) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional 

business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 0 

experience (as June 30, 2023) 

Total Category A: 5 or 30% whichever is less 0.0 

55 / 59 



  

          

     

 

 

 

  

 

    

     

      

 

         

    

     

        

     

       

       

      

     

   

     

CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER SCIENCE, 

TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION. 

FTE Count 

i. Mathematics 0 

ii. Science 0 

iii. Computer Science 0 

iv. Technology 0 

v. Career and Technical Education 0 

Total Category B: not to exceed 5 0.0 

CATEGORY C: PLUS 5 ADDITIONAL UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

FTE Count 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least three 

years of elementary, middle or secondary classroom 0 

teaching experience (as of June 30, 2023) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
0 

tenure track college faculty (as of June 30, 2023) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of 
0 

Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 2023) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional 

business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 0 

experience (as June 30, 2023) 

Total Category C: not to exceed 5 0.0 
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TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS (Sum of Categories A, B AND C) 

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for that 

category) 

FTE Count 

Total 0 

CATEGORY D: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCATEGORIZED, UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for that 

category) 

FTE Count 

Total Category D 0 

CATEGORY E: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF CERTIFIED TEACHERS 

FTE Count 

Total Category E 80 

CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS 

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

FTE Count 

Total Category F 80 

Thank you. 

Entry 12 Organization Chart 
Completed - Jul 26 2023 

Instructions 
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Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Upload the 2022-2023 Organization Chart. The organization chart should be a graphic representation (A list will not 
be accepted.) and should include position titles and reporting (hierarchical) relationships. Employee names should 
not appear on the chart. 

Org Chart 2021-22 

Filename: Org_Chart_2021-22.pdf Size: 27.3 kB 

Entry 13 School Calendar 

Completed - Jul 26 2023 

Instructions for submitting School Calendar 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

If the charter school has a tentative calendar based on available information and guidance at the time, please submit 
with the August 1, 2023 submission. Charter schools must upload a final school calendar into the portal and may do 
so at any time but no later than September 15, 2023. 

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools “… unless 
the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.” 

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools also are required to submit school calendars that clearly indicate the 
start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or instructional days for each 
month (also used to align to schools with extended days/years referenced in their mission statements/key design 
elements), See an example of a calendar showing the requested information. Schools must use a calendar format 
and ensure there is a monthly tally of instructional days. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes only. 

Calendar 2023-24 Approved rev1 

Filename: Calendar_2023-24_Approved_rev1.pdf Size: 171.3 kB 

Entry 14 Staff Roster 

Completed - Jul 31 2023 

INSTRUCTIONS 

Required of Regents and NYCDOE-authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Please click on the MS Excel Faculty/Staff Roster Template and provide the following information for ANY and ALL 
instructional and non-instructional employees (all faculty and staff employed by the school during the 2022-2023 
school year). 

Use of the 2022-2023 Annual Report Faculty/Staff Roster Template is required. Each of the data elements, with 
the exception of the Notes, are required, and use of the drop-down options, when provided, is also required. 
Reminders: Please use the Notes section provided to add any additional information as deemed necessary. Failure 

to adhere to the guidelines and validations in the Faculty/Staff Roster Template will result in a resubmission of a fully 
corrected roster. 

Here is the complete list of data elements in the roster template and an explanation of what information is required to 
correctly complete this task. 

Roster Data Elements Explanations 

Authorizer Select your school’s authorizer from the drop-down list 
NOTE: MUST BE DONE FIRST first, before completing the roster. 
School Name and Institution ID Select your school’s name from the drop-down list. 
Faculty/Staff First Name Enter the first name of the Faculty/Staff person. 
Faculty/Staff Last Name Enter the last name of the Faculty/Staff person. 

58 / 59 

https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/227652875/28063413/Org_Chart_2021-22.pdf
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/attendance/htm_docs/final_adopted_regulations.htm
https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/227652876/28063361/Calendar_2023-24_Approved_rev1.pdf
http://www.nysed.gov/charter-schools/annual-reports


  

          

           
   

         
        

        
   

          
    

         
   

        
        

    

     

TEACH ID Enter the 7 digit TEACH ID for the Faculty/Staff person. 
Select the best choice of role of the Faculty/Staff person Role in School from the drop-down list. 

CPR/AED Certification Status Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list. 
Hire Date Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person was hired. 

Enter the date that the Faculty/Staff person actually Start Date began employment in this school. 
Enter Total Years of Experience that the Faculty/Staff Total Years’ Experience in this Role person has in their current role. 
Enter the Total Years that the Faculty/Staff person has Total Years at this School been employed in this school. 

Out-of-Certification Justification Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list. 
Subject Taught Select the appropriate choice from the drop-down list. 
Notes Optional 

faculty-staff-roster-template-2023 

Filename: faculty-staff-roster-template-202_U4HtK02.xlsx Size: 26.2 kB 

Optional Additional Documents to Upload (BOR) 
Incomplete 
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https://nysed-cso.smapply.io/protected/tr/227652877/28101041/faculty-staff-roster-template-202_U4HtK02.xlsx
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Board of Directors of 
Riverhead Charter School, Inc. 
3685 Middle Country Road 
Calverton, New York 11933 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Riverhead Charter School, Inc. (the “School”), 
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related 
statements of activities,  functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the School as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (“GAAS”) and Government Auditing Standards.  Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, on June 30, 2023, the School adopted new accounting 
guidance, Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), Topic 842, Leases. Our opinion is not modified 
with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
   

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

   

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue 
as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Bohemia, New York 
August 14, 2023 

- 2 -



  
                   
              
                 

                     

            

              

  

  
                 
                             
              
                               

                         

                     

                     

                     
                               

                     

  

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2023 2022 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents ……………………………………………… $ 10,592,376 $ 11,145,909 
Prepaid expenses………………………………………………………… 78,239 121,113 
Accounts receivable……………………………………………..……… 2,460,379 2,106,068 
Grants receivable………………………………………………………… 581,391 354,368 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 13,712,385 13,727,458 

Property and equipment, net …………………………………………….. 18,456,135 17,095,167 
Security deposit……………………………………………………………… 39,900 259,900 
Restricted cash ……………………………………………………………… 4,730,771 4,901,141 
Operating lease right of use asset………………………………………… 2,090,864 1,491,048 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 39,030,055 $ 37,474,714 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities: 
Current portion of bonds payable, net of 

unamortized bond issuance costs …………………………………… $ 319,075 $ 309,076 
Interest payable…………………………………………………………… 550,046 559,565 
Grant advances…………………………………………………………… - 64,747 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ……………………………… 1,976,725 1,560,702 
Current portion of operating lease liability…………………………… 230,380 156,261 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,076,226 2,650,351 

Bonds payable, net of current portion 
and unamortized bond issuance costs………………………………… 17,992,704 18,321,779 

Operating lease liability, net of current portion………………………… 1,869,890 1,334,787 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,938,820 22,306,917 

Net Assets:
 Without donor restrictions………………………………………………… 15,990,597 14,991,888
 With donor restrictions …………………………………………………… 100,638 175,909 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 16,091,235 15,167,797 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 39,030,055 $ 37,474,714 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. - 3 -



                                                      
                                                          
                                                      
                                                         

                                 

                                            
                                                

                                            

                                                    

                                           

                                 

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions Total 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT: 
Tuition and program service income…………………………… $ 15,819,730 $ - $ 15,819,730 
Government grants ………………………………………………… 739,973 - 739,973 
Investment income ………………………………………………… 49,109 - 49,109 
Other income……………………………………………………… 120,655 - 120,655 
Net assets released from restriction ……………………………… 75,271 (75,271) -

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 16,804,738 (75,271) 16,729,467 

EXPENSES: 
Program services…………………………………………………… 14,000,648 - 14,000,648 
Management and general………………………………………… 1,658,542 - 1,658,542 

TOTAL EXPENSES 15,659,190 - 15,659,190 

OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS: 
Loss on non-refundable deposit…………………………………… (146,839) - (146,839) 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 998,709 (75,271) 923,438 

Net assets, beginning of year………………………………………… 14,991,888 175,909 15,167,797 

Net assets, end of year……………………………………………… $ 15,990,597 $ 100,638 $ 16,091,235 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. - 4 -



   
                                                      
                                                              
                                                          
                                                                             

                                

                                            
                                                

                                            

                                          

                                  

   

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restricted Restricted Total 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT: 
Tuition and Program service income …………………………… $ 13,759,515 $ 112,435 $ 13,871,950 
Government grants ……………………………………………… 455,674 - 455,674 
Investment income ……………………………………………… 8,516 - 8,516 
Other income……………………………………………………… 49,655 - 49,655 
Net assets released from restriction …………………………… - - -

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 14,273,360 112,435 14,385,795 

EXPENSES: 
Program services………………………………………………… 12,173,212 - 12,173,212 
Management and general………………………………………… 1,247,624 - 1,247,624 

TOTAL EXPENSES 13,420,836 - 13,420,836 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 852,524 112,435 964,959 

Net assets, beginning of year……………………………………… 14,139,364 63,474 14,202,838 

Net assets, end of year……………………………………………… $ 14,991,888 $ 175,909 $ 15,167,797 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. - 5 -



 

                                                                          
                                                                             
                                                              

                                                                
                                                                                               
                                                                           
                                                                           
                                                                             
                                                                           
                                                                                                
                                                                                     
                                                                           
                                                                                           
                                                                                     
                                                                           
                                                                  
                                                                                            
                                                                                                 
                                                                             
                                                                                                                                   
                                                                             

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Program Services 

No. of 
Positions 

Personnel services costs 
Administrative staff personnel…………………………… 27 
Instructional personnel…………………………………… 126 
Non-instructional personnel……………………………… 4 
Total salaries and staff……………………………………… 157 6,457,640 272,442 6,730,082 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes …………………………… 2,022,590 85,331 2,107,921 
Advertising……………………………………………………… 9,544 292 9,836 
Occupancy……………………………………………………… 387,481 11,836 399,317 
Contracted services……………………………………………… 470,467 14,371 484,838 
Travel and transportation……………………………………… 199,895 6,106 206,001 
Supplies………………………………………………………… 540,834 16,521 557,355 
Core curriculum………………………………………………… 12,949 396 13,345 
Telephone and communications……………………………… 69,770 2,131 71,901 
Repairs and maintenance……………………………………… 468,163 14,301 482,464 
Equipment……………………………………………………… 10,414 318 10,732 
Student meals…………………………………………………… 796,506 24,331 820,837 
Depreciation and amortization………………………………… 692,027 21,139 713,166 
Interest expense, net of subsidized interest ………………… 1,060,132 32,384 1,092,516 
Conferences……………………………………………………… 9,141 279 9,420 
Recruitment……………………………………………………… 4,937 151 5,088 
Insurance………………………………………………………… 139,604 4,264 143,868 
Bad debt expense……………………………………………… - - -
Miscellaneous…………………………………………………… 137,753 4,208 141,961 

Regular 
Education 

$ 1,185,159 $ 109,690 
5,126,941 156,612 

145,540 6,140 

$ 13,489,847 

Special 
Education 

$ 510,801 

Total 

$ 1,294,849 
5,283,553 

151,680 

$ 14,000,648 

Management 
and General Total 

933,146 
-

21,516 
954,662 

$ 2,227,995 
5,283,553 

173,196 
7,684,744 

299,009 
692 

28,082 
68,774 
29,221 
79,060 

-
5,056 

33,930 
755 

-
50,154 
76,833 
1,337 

722 
10,118 

-
20,137 

$ 1,658,542 $ 

2,406,930 
10,528 

427,399 
553,612 
235,222 
636,415 
13,345 
76,957 

516,394 
11,487 

820,837 
763,320 

1,169,349 
10,757 
5,810 

153,986 
-

162,098 
15,659,190 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. - 6 -



 

                                                                        
                                                                               
                                                            

                                                              
                                                                                               
                                                                         
                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                           
                                                                                              
                                                                                   
                                                                         
                                                                                               
                                                                                   
                                                                         
                                                                
                                                                                      
                                                                                               
                                                                                 
                                                                                                             
                                                                           

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Program Services 

Personnel services costs 
Administrative staff personnel……………………………… 
Instructional personnel……………………………………… 
Non-instructional personnel………………………………… 
Total salaries and staff……………………………………… 

No. of 
Positions 

24 
82 
2 

108 

$ 

Regular 
Education 

1,076,411 
4,695,209 

90,034 
5,861,654 

$ 

Special 
Education 

38,314 
167,124 

3,205 
208,643 

$ 

Total 

1,114,725 
4,862,333 

93,239 
6,070,297 

Management 
and General 

$ 654,056 
-

10,203 
664,259 

$ 

Total 

1,768,781 
4,862,333 

103,442 
6,734,556 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes ……………………………… 
Advertising………………………………………………………… 
Occupancy………………………………………………………… 
Contracted services……………………………………………… 
Travel and transportation………………………………………… 
Supplies…………………………………………………………… 
Core curriculum…………………………………………………… 
Telephone and communications………………………………… 
Repairs and maintenance………………………………………… 
Equipment………………………………………………………… 
Student meals……………………………………………………… 
Depreciation and amortization………………………………… 
Interest expense, net of subsidized interest …………………… 
Conferences……………………………………………………… 
Recruitment……………………………………………………… 
Insurance…………………………………………………………… 
Bad debt expense………………………………………………… 
Miscellaneous……………………………………………………… 

$ 

2,039,551 
8,521 

343,073 
351,682 

7,083 
268,227 
16,300 
43,785 

352,941 
7,462 

593,387 
555,858 

1,064,767 
15,397 
7,945 

91,931 
-

125,241 
11,754,805 $ 

72,597 
303 

12,212 
12,518 

252 
9,547 

580 
1,559 

12,563 
266 

21,121 
19,785 
37,900 

548 
283 

3,272 
-

4,458 
418,407 $ 

2,112,148 
8,824 

355,285 
364,200 

7,335 
277,774 
16,880 
45,344 

365,504 
7,728 

614,508 
575,643 

1,102,667 
15,945 
8,228 

95,203 
-

129,699 
12,173,212 

231,128 
621 

24,986 
39,854 

803 
30,396 

-
3,189 

25,705 
543 

-
40,483 
77,547 
1,745 

900 
6,695 

84,577 
14,193 

$ 1,247,624 $ 

2,343,276 
9,445 

380,271 
404,054 

8,138 
308,170 
16,880 
48,533 

391,209 
8,271 

614,508 
616,126 

1,180,214 
17,690 
9,128 

101,898 
84,577 

143,892 
13,420,836 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. - 7 -



  

                                 

                                                  
                             

                                     
                            
                               
                                       
                                    
                                 

                              

                         
                                  

                         

                               

                             

                       

  

  

  
                           

  

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 2022 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Change in net assets……………………………………………………… $ 923,438 $ 964,959 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization……………………………… 763,320 616,126 
Amortization of bond issuance costs………………………… 15,924 15,924 
Noncash operating lease expense…………………………… 9,406 -
Bad debt………………………………………………………… - 84,577 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Prepaid expenses…………………………………………………… 42,874 (65,097) 
Accounts receivable………………………………………………… (354,311) (1,424,913) 
Grants receivable…………………………………………………… (227,023) (158,971) 
Interest payable……………………………………………………… (9,519) (9,150) 
Grant advances……………………………………………………… (64,747) 64,747 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses………………………… 416,023 237,909 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,515,385 326,111 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Purchase of fixed assets………………………………………………… (2,124,288) (1,470,175) 
Security deposit refund/(payment)…………………………………… 220,000 (20,000) 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,904,288) (1,490,175) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Repayment of bonds payable…………………………………………… (335,000) (325,000) 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (723,903) (1,489,064) 

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of year………………………… 16,047,050 17,536,114 

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end of year………………………………… $ 15,323,147 $ 16,047,050 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 

Cash paid for interest ……………………………………………………………………… $ 1,337,927 $ 1,353,926 

PRESENTATION OF CASH ON THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION: 

Cash and cash equivalents……………………………………………… $ 10,592,376 $ 11,145,909 
Restricted cash …………………………………………………………… 4,730,771 4,901,141 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year …………………………………………………… $ 15,323,147 $ 16,047,050 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. - 8 -



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Riverhead Charter School, Inc. (hereinafter the 
“School”) is presented to assist in understanding the School’s financial statements.  These financial 
statements and notes are representations of the School’s management, which is responsible for the 
integrity and objectivity of the financial statements.  These accounting policies conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the 
preparation of the financial statements. 

Organization: The School is a not-for-profit organization that was incorporated under Article 56 of the 
Education Law on February 1, 2001 pursuant to a five-year provisional charter granted by the Education 
Department of the State of New York (“NYSED”).  The School’s main objective is to offer students a true 
choice in public education, which promotes love of learning and local exploration.  The School’s goal is 
to provide a rigorous community of learning, which is inviting and stimulating to staff and parents, as 
well as students. The School intends to reverse the current spiral of student failure and meet or exceed 
State and federal standards, to nurture the individual gifts of every student, and to prepare them for a 
rewarding community life. Through fiscal 2013, the School was approved to provide education to 
children in kindergarten through sixth grade.  Effective September 2013, the School received approval to 
expand its program to seventh grade, and effective September 2014, to eighth grade. On March 2, 2017, 
the School received approval to expand its maximum enrollment to 787 students and renovated its old 
school and administrative buildings to accommodate the extra classes.  Effective September 2020, the 
School received approval to expand its program to ninth and tenth grades.  Effective September 2022, 
the School received approval to expand its program to eleventh grade and moved the high school classes 
to a newly renovated high school building. Effective September 2023, the School received approval to 
expand its program to twelfth grade. The School’s charter has been renewed by the Education 
Department of the State of New York through June 30, 2027. 

Income Tax Status: The School is exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code and is publicly supported, as described in section 509(a).  The School is also exempt from 
certain State and local taxes.  The School evaluated for uncertain tax positions and has determined that 
there were no uncertain tax positions for 2023 and 2022. The School files a Form 990 and is exempt from 
filing a New York state return. The 990 is subject to review and examination by federal taxing authorities. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: During the year ended June 30, 2023, the School adopted 
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), Topic 842, Leases, for all material long-term operating 
leases. Under this new accounting pronouncement, the School recognized right-of-use assets and lease 
liabilities calculated based on the present value of the lease payments not yet paid, discounted using 
appropriate discount rates at the lease commencement dates. The right-of-use assets are initially equal 
to the lease liabilities plus any initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments, less any lease incentives 
received. Under this approach, amortization of right-of-use assets is charged to rent expense, which is 
recorded on the straight-line basis over the term of each lease, unless another systematic and rational 
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit is derived from the leased property, 
in which case that basis will be used. See Note 4 for related disclosures. 

Basis of Accounting: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Revenue is recorded as earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. 

- 9 -



 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Revenue Recognition and Receivables: Tuition revenue is recognized ratably across the period in which 
the related educational instruction is provided.  

The School recognizes revenue from government grants and state aid as revenue when eligible costs are 
incurred, or services are provided. A receivable is recognized to the extent revenue earned exceeds cash 
advances. Conversely, deferred revenue and refundable advances are recorded when cash advances 
exceed support and revenue earned. 

Performance obligations for all of the School’s services are provided and consumed at a point in time, or 
over one year, and therefore these types of fees allocated to performance obligations are not left 
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. 

Contributions and grants made to the School are recognized as revenue upon the receipt of cash or other 
assets or of unconditional pledges. Contributions are recorded as either with or without restriction 
depending on whether or not they are received with donor stipulations or time considerations as to their 
use. Furthermore, contributions received with restrictions are evaluated for donor intent as to whether 
such contributions must be maintained in perpetuity by the School or they can be expended at a future 
time or for a specific purpose stipulated by the donor. Contributions received whose restrictions expire 
within the same fiscal year are recorded as without restriction. Conditional contributions are recorded 
when the conditions have been met and, if received in advance, are recognized in the statements of 
financial position as funds received in advance.  When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated 
time restriction expires or purpose restriction is satisfied), net assets are reclassed from assets with donor 
restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net 
assets released from restrictions. 

Deferred Revenue: The School recognizes, as deferred revenue, any amounts received in advance for the 
following year’s tuition. 

Cash Equivalents: For the purposes of the financial statements, cash equivalents represent money market 
funds with financial institutions. 

Advertising:  The School uses advertising to promote its program activities among the public it serves. 
The production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred. 

Use of Estimates: The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses: Accounts payable and accrued expenses on the statements of 
financial position include accrued salaries of $907,676 and $678,488 and contributions due to retirement 
plans of $880,004 and $739,579, for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Basis of Presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board, specifically for not-for-profit organizations. The School is required to 
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets: 

Net assets without donor restrictions – Net assets that are not subject to donor–imposed 
stipulations. 

Net assets with donor restrictions – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations or other 
stipulations that may or will be met, either by action of the School and/or the passage of time. 
When a restriction expires, these net assets are reclassified annually to net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be 
maintained in perpetuity.  

Donated Services: The School benefits from volunteer services in program and administrative duties 
from Board members and other volunteers.  Even though these donated services are valuable to the 
School, and help to advance its mission, no amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for  
these contributed services inasmuch as such services do not meet the criteria for recognition in the 
financial statements under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, nor 
do they create or enhance non-financial assets. 

Expense Allocation: Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services. 
Expenses related to more than one function are allocated to programs and supporting services based 
upon management estimates.  The most significant expense allocations used in the preparation of these 
financial statements are as follows: 

Salaries …………………………………..……………… Level of effort 
Payroll taxes and fringes ……………………………… Based upon salaries 

  Occupancy related costs/Interest……….……………. Square footage used 

Leased Employees: The School has a contract with PrestigePEO (“Prestige”), a professional employer 
organization for leased employees. Prestige provides comprehensive human resource services to the 
School and is responsible for personnel, administrative, and benefits management functions, as well as 
payroll processing.  Since Prestige is the employer of record for all employees assigned to the School, 
they are included in the Prestige quarterly Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) Form 941, New York State 
Form NYS-45, and statutory New York State disability and workers compensation filings. 

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are stated at original cost.  Those assets acquired by 
gift are carried at fair market value established at the date of acquisition.    

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense and betterments are capitalized.  Depreciation expense 
is computed using the straight-line method over each asset’s estimated useful life as follows: 

Building ....................................................................................... 25 – 39 years 
Building improvements ............................................................ 10 – 25 years 
Equipment .................................................................................. 3.5 – 5 years 
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Bond Issuance Costs:  Bond issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, are reported as a direct 
deduction from the face amount of the bond. Bond issuance costs are amortized on the straight-line basis 
over the term of the bond and are included in interest expense in the statements of functional expenses. 

Subsequent Events: The School has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between July 1, 2023 
and August 14, 2023 which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, for possible 
disclosure and recognition in the financial statements. 

NOTE 2 - CONCENTRATIONS AND COMMITMENTS 

The School maintains cash balances at banks which may, at times, exceed the $250,000 Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation limit. Due to recent bank failures and other uncertainties affecting the banking 
sector, there may be greater financial and liquidity risk for uninsured deposits held at financial 
institutions. Although the FDIC has taken significant steps to protect uninsured deposits impacted by 
these bank failures, there are no assurances surrounding any potential future failures and their impacts 
on uninsured deposits in terms of both guarantees and the ability to access funds timely. This includes 
both operating cash and restricted cash. 

Restricted cash consisted of the following as of June 30,: 

2023 2022 
Debt service reserve fund  ................................. $ 2,020,878  $  2,020,776  
Excess bond funds .............................................. 2,016,976 2,704,552  
Custody account ................................................. 492,058 -
Charter dissolution account .............................. 100,859 75,813  
Repair and Replacement fund .......................... 100,000 100,000  
Total Restricted cash ......................................... $    4,730,771  $  4,901,141  

During fiscal 2023, approximately 88% of the School’s total support and revenue was comprised of tuition 
income from several Eastern Suffolk County school districts, the largest of which were: Riverhead 
Central School District (61%), William Floyd School District (12%), Longwood Central School District 
(8%), South Country Central School District (3%), and other school districts (4%).  The remaining 12% 
was primarily comprised of revenue related to the School’s Student Meal Program (6%), state and federal 
grants (5%), and other income (1%). 

During fiscal 2022, approximately 91% of the School’s total support and revenue was comprised of tuition 
income from several Eastern Suffolk County school districts, the largest of which were: Riverhead 
Central School District (61%), William Floyd School District (13%), Longwood Central School District 
(8%), South Country Central School District (3%), and other school districts (6%).  The remaining 9% was 
primarily comprised of revenue related to the School’s Student Meal Program (5%), state and federal 
grants (3%), and other income (1%). 

The School has entered into a collective bargaining agreement with its teachers and teacher assistants 
through the Teachers’ Association.  The current agreement expires on June 30, 2026 and provides for 
raises of 3% each year. 
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 2 - CONCENTRATIONS AND COMMITMENTS (continued) 

During December 2022, the School entered into an employment agreement (the “Agreement”) with its 
Superintendent covering the period from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027.  The Agreement calls for a 
5% increase in the Superintendent’s base salary for the year ended June 30, 2023, with annual increases 
of 3% for each year thereafter through the expiration of the Agreement. The Agreement is terminable by 
the School with 45 days written notice or with no notice for cause, as outlined in the Agreement.  The 
Superintendent can terminate the Agreement at the end of a school year with at least six months written 
notice. 

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30: 

Land ......................................................................................... 
Construction in Progress ....................................................... 
Building ................................................................................... 
Building improvements ......................................................... 
Equipment ............................................................................... 
Total cost .................................................................................. 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ............. 
Net property and equipment................................................ 

$ 

$ 

2023 
794,457 

-
19,302,821  

4,383,967 
957,364 

 25,438,609 
(6,982,474) 
18,456,135 

$ 

$ 

2022 
   794,457 
1,389,460 

19,302,821 
1,160,012 

667,570 
   23,314,320 

(6,219,154) 
17,095,166 

NOTE 4 – OPERATING LEASE 

During May 2021, the School entered into a 120-month lease for space in Riverhead, New York.  Monthly 
payments were to be $15,000 for the term of the lease. An amendment to the lease was agreed upon 
during February 2023 which expanded the space under lease. The amended terms call for monthly 
payments of $23,000 from February 2023 through July 2023 and monthly payments of $25,000 from 
August 2023 through June 2031, the end of the lease. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
lease expense relating to the lease was recorded in the amount of $229,406 and $180,000 within occupancy 
on the statements of functional expenses, respectively. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
there were lease payments relating to the lease in the amount of $220,000 and $180,000, respectively. As 
of June 30, 2023, the approximate future minimum annual lease obligations on the lease are as follows 
for the years ending June 30,: 

2024 ........................................................ $  298,000 
2025 ........................................................  300,000 
2026 ........................................................  300,000 
2027 ........................................................  300,000 
2028 ........................................................  300,000 
Thereafter ..............................................  900,000 

Total ....................................................... 2,398,000 
Less: present value discount ..............       (297,730) 
Present value of future minimum 
lease obligations ................................... $ 2,100,270 
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 4 – OPERATING LEASE (continued) 

Short-term lease liabilities .................. $  230,380 
Long-term lease liabilities ................... 1,869,890 

Total lease liabilities ............................ $ 2,100,270 

Months remaining ............................... 96 
Discount rate at commencement ....... 3.43% 

NOTE 5 - ACCOUNTS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable consisted of the following as of June 30,: 

2023 2022 
Tuition receivable from school districts .......... $     2,116,721 $ 1,710,426 
NYSED ................................................................. 190,835 321,804  
Subsidized interest receivable .......................... 152,823 73,838  
Total accounts receivable ................................... $ 2,460,379 $ 2,106,068 

The School uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible accounts and grants receivable.  The 
allowance for doubtful accounts is based primarily on the School’s collection efforts and management’s 
analysis of specific outstanding balances.  The School does not impose interest or finance charges on 
overdue receivable balances. Collectability is assessed on an individual account basis, and uncollectible 
accounts are written off against the allowance after approval by the School Board.  As of both June 30, 
2023 and 2022, there was no allowance for doubtful accounts. 

NOTE 6 - GRANTOR RESTRICTIONS 

Financial awards from governmental entities in the form of grants are subject to special audit.  Such 
audits could result in claims against the School for disallowed costs or noncompliance with grantor 
restrictions.  No provision has been made for any liabilities that may arise from such audits since the 
amounts, if any, cannot be determined at this date. 

NYSED requires all charter schools to maintain $100,000 in a separate account to cover the cost of a 
potential closure should the School’s charter not be renewed. This amount has to be maintained even 
when the Charter is renewed and has accordingly been included, along with accumulated interest, in 
restricted cash on the School’s statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. See Note 2 
for more information. 
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 7 – BONDS PAYABLE 

On August 22, 2013, the School issued education revenue bonds through the Riverhead IDA Economic 
Job Development Corporation in the amount of $21,105,000 to fund the construction of a 50,000 square 
foot two-story building and related infrastructure to be used as a school building to replace modular 
buildings located on the School’s six-acre campus.  

The bonds are comprised of $16,105,000 of Series A tax-exempt bonds (“Series A Bonds”) with maturities 
ranging from August 1, 2015 through August 1, 2048, bearing interest between 3% and 7.04% and 
$5,000,000 of Series B federally taxable qualified school construction bonds (“Series B Bonds”) that bear 
interest at 7.65% and mature on August 1, 2034.  Interest on the bonds are payable semi-annually on 
February 1st and August 1st of each year, commencing February 1, 2014. In addition, the School is 
required to meet certain financial and reporting covenants, which includes a deadline for filing the 
School’s audited financial statements within 45 days of the end of its fiscal year.  

Pursuant to the bond agreement, the proceeds of the loan were utilized as follows: 

Series A Series B 
Tax-Exempt Taxable Total 

Financing building construction................... $ 9,200,000 $ 4,900,000 $ 14,100,000 
Repayment of Edison Debt ............................ 3,195,164 - 3,195,164 
Debt service reserve fund .............................. 1,502,925 500,000 2,002,925 
Fund Capital interest through          
     February 15, 2015 ....................................... 1,545,978 - 1,545,978 
Original Issue Discount .................................  182,411 -  182,411 
Issuance costs .................................................. 627,630 145,492 773,122 
Total .................................................................. 16,254,108 5,545,492 21,799,600 
Paid directly by the School ............................ (149,108) (545,492)   (694,600) 
Funded through bond issuance .................... $ 16,105,000 $ 5,000,000 $ 21,105,000

Any excess bond funds at the completion of the projects will be used for the early retirement of debt as 
determined by the Trustee. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were $506,995 and $506,970 of excess bond 
funds available, respectively. 

The bonds are secured by all of the assets of the School and provide for a lien on gross revenue, a 
mortgage on the property, and a guarantee by the School.  The debt service reserve fund outlined above, 
must be maintained by the School with the Custodian until all obligations have been repaid.  The Series 
B Bonds provide for direct interest subsidy payments from the US Treasury at the lesser of the tax credit 
rate at the time of issuance or the 7.65% issuance rate.  The bond provided for interest only payments 
until 2016, at which time the principal began being repaid over the life of the bond based upon specific 
payment amounts as outlined in the bond agreement. 
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 7 – BONDS PAYABLE (continued) 

The bond retirements pursuant to the bond agreement are as follows for the years ending June 30: 

Gross Amortization Net 
2024 ....................................................................... $ 350,000 $  (15,924) $ 334,076 
2025 ....................................................................... 365,000  (15,924) 349,076 
2026 ....................................................................... 380,000  (15,924) 364,076 
2027 ....................................................................... 395,000  (15,924) 379,076 
2028 ....................................................................... 410,000  (15,924) 394,076 
Thereafter ............................................................ 16,795,000 (303,601) 16,491,399 
Total before debt issuance costs .......................     18,695,000 $ (383,221) $ 18,311,779 
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs ............ (383,221) 
Total ..................................................................... $ 18,311,779  

The School can redeem the Series A Bonds at any time subsequent to August 1, 2023 without penalty. 
The maturities of the outstanding debt at that time are $1,630,000 at August 1, 2033, $7,295,000 at August 
1, 2043, and $6,330,000 at August 1, 2048.  Early redemption of the Series B Bonds can occur subsequent 
to August 1, 2018 at a premium commencing at 103.5% at August 1, 2018, decreasing to no premium at 
August 1, 2023. The School must maintain certain financial ratios pursuant to the bond agreement. 

Interest expense incurred for the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 on the Series 2013 Bonds totaled 
$1,337,927 and $1,360,701, respectively. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the School reported interest earned 
on Federal Subsidy interest income of $168,578 and $180,487, respectively. Federal Subsidy interest was 
offset against interest expense on the statements of functional expenses for both the years ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022. 

Additionally, the IDA requires the School to maintain a Repair and Replacement Fund of $100,000 in a 
separate account for as long as the bonds are outstanding.  The Repair and Replacement Fund will only 
be used to pay capital related expenses incurred for maintenance and betterment of the project. 
Withdrawals from the fund require approval of the Trustee and must meet certain criteria as outlined in 
the loan agreement. As of both June 30, 2023 and 2022, no funds had been drawn against this fund. 

NOTE 8 – NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 

The School’s net assets with donor restrictions are to fund the School’s National School Lunch Program.  
Net assets with donor restrictions were $100,638 and $175,909 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.   
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 9 – RETIREMENT PLANS 

The School participates in the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS”) and New York State 
and Local Employees’ Retirement System (“ERS”), collectively (the “Systems”), which are cost-sharing 
multiple employer public employee retirement systems. The Systems offer a wide range of plans and 
benefits which are related to years of service and final average salary, as well as vesting of retirement, 
death and disability benefits. TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board 
and provides benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the 
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York. TRS issues a publicly available financial 
report that contains financial statements and required supplementary information. ERS provides 
retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. New York State Retirement and Social 
Security Law governs obligations of employers and employees to contribute and provide benefits to 
employees. 

No employee contribution is required for those employees whose service began prior to July 1976. The 
Systems require employee contributions of 3% of salary for the first 10 years of service for those 
employees who joined the System from July 1976 through December 2009. Participants whose service 
began on or after January 1, 2010 through March 31, 2012 are required to contribute 3% (ERS) or 3.5% 
(TRS) of compensation throughout their active membership in the Systems. Participants whose service 
began on or after April 1, 2012 are required to contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6% each year, 
based on their level of compensation. 

For ERS, the Comptroller annually certifies the rates used, expressed as a percentage of the wages of 
participants, to compute the contributions required to be made by the School to the pension accumulation 
fund. The contribution rates for ERS vary depending on the participant’s tier. The ERS average 
contribution rate was 11.6% and 16.2% as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. For the years ended 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, required contributions for ERS were $80,705 and $83,285, respectively.  Pursuant 
to Article 11 of the Education Law, rates are established annually for TRS by the New York State 
Teachers’ Retirement Board at an actuarially determined rate. The rate is 10.29% and 9.80% of the annual 
covered payroll as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
the required contributions for TRS totaled $605,241 and $492,784, respectively. Accrued employer 
contributions due to TRS of $849,477 and $716,990 are included in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses on the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Accrued 
employer contributions due to ERS of $30,527 and $22,589 are included in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses on the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

NOTE 10 – LITIGATION 

From time to time the School is subject to certain claims or litigation in the normal course of its operations. 
The School is not aware of any claims for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. 
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022 

NOTE 11 – AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY 

The following represents the School’s financial assets as of June 30,: 

2023 2022 
Cash and cash equivalents .................................................... $ 10,592,376 $ 11,145,909 
Accounts receivable ............................................................... 2,460,379 2,106,068 
Grants receivable .................................................................... 581,391 354,368 
Financial assets available to meet general expenditures 
over the next twelve months ................................................ $ 13,634,146 $ 13,606,345 

The School’s goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 90 days of operating expenses 
(approximately $3,700,000 net of non-cash expenses).   

NOTE 12 – FINANCIAL IMPACTS OF COVID-19 

As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen, which may 
negatively impact operating results. The School is anticipating that there will be no decline in its tuition 
revenue and as such, it is not anticipated that the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic will have a 
significant long-term impact on the School’s financial position or operations. 

As a result of the American Rescue Plan and Secondary School Emergency Relief (“ARP ESSER”) Act of 
2021, the School has budgeted $727,591 for funds to help the School to safely reopen. The funding allows 
for expenses that reduce the pandemics impact on students and schools; these expenses need to be 
incurred by September 30, 2023.  During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the School utilized 
$200,203 and $269,785, of this funding, respectively, which is included in government grants on the 
Statement of Activities. 

As a result of the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations (“CRRSA”) Act of 2021 
the School has budgeted $323,736 for funds to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the coronavirus. The 
funding has to be used by September 30, 2023.  During the year ended June 30, 2023, the School utilized 
$300,694 of this funding, which is included in government grants on the Statement of Activities.   During 
the year ended June, 30 2022, the School did not utilize any of the funding. 
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Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On  
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of  

Financial Statements Performed In Accordance  
With Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Riverhead Charter School, Inc. 
3685 Middle Country Road 
Calverton, New York 11933 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Riverhead Charter 
School, Inc. (hereinafter the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 14, 
2023. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance, 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Bohemia, New York 
August 14, 2023 
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Section I – Findings of Financial Statement Audit 

There were no findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
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RIVERHEAD CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Section II – Prior Audit Findings of Financial Statement Audit 

There were no findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
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August 14, 2023 

To the Board of Directors of 
Riverhead Charter School, Inc. 
3685 Middle Country Road 
Calverton, New York 11933 

We have audited the financial statements of Riverhead Charter School, Inc. (a not-for-profit corporation, 
hereinafter “the School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon 
dated August 14, 2023. Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters 
relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 15, 2023, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that 
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of 
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting. As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the School solely for the purpose of 
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 
communicate to you.  

Communication of Internal Control Matters 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
a material misstatement of Riverhead Charter School, Inc.’s financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the likelihood of an event 
occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but 
less than likely. 

 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given 
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. We did, however, note a deficiency in internal controls and opportunity for organizational 
improvement. We have identified the deficiency and provided our recommendations below: 

Issue: During the audit, we noted the School did not initially adopt Accounting Standards Codification 
(“ASC”), Topic 842, Leases. In order to adopt the standard, we proposed an adjustment to record a right 
of use asset of $2,090,864 and a lease liability of $2,100,270. 

Recommendation: Management and the outside accountants should be cognizant of the upcoming and 
newly required accounting standards. This will help ensure management and the Board have accurate 
financial information in line with accounting standards. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to 
you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, and others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm overall, have complied with 
all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 

Significant Risks Identified 

We take a risk approach to our audit, focusing additional attention on the areas of greatest risk.  During 
the course of our initial risk assessment, we identified the following areas as those we identified as 
significant risks: 

 Revenue recognition cycle – Revenue recognition is a significant risk as revenue recognition 
rules are convoluted and complex and are more susceptible to material misstatement. This affects 
multiple financial statement areas such as revenue and receivables. We responded to this risk by 
testing your revenue control environment, substantively testing tuition and program service 
income, and reviewing contracts and other relationships.  Additionally, we performed 
substantive and analytical testing of receivables. As a result, we determined that revenue 
recognition methodologies appear to be in conformance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, and effectively implemented. 

 Expense allocations – We responded to this risk by reviewing management’s methodology for 
allocating expenses amongst program services and management and general in the statement of 
functional expenses. We also performed analytical procedures over the expense allocations and 
explained significant fluctuations. As a result, we determined that the methodology for allocating 
expenses appears to be reasonable in relation to the financial statements. 

Qualitative Aspects of The School’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by the School is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. 
During the year ended June 30, 2023, the School retroactively adopted Accounting Standards 
Codification (“ASC”), Topic 842, Leases, for all material long-term operating leases. Under this new 
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accounting pronouncement, the School recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities calculated 
based on the present value of the lease payments not yet paid, discounted using appropriate discount 
rates at the lease commencement dates. The right-of-use assets are initially equal to the lease liabilities 
plus any initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments, less any lease incentives received. Under this 
approach, amortization of right-of-use assets is charged to rent expense, which is recorded on the 
straight-line basis over the term of each lease, unless another systematic and rational basis is more 
representative of the time pattern in which use benefit is derived from the leased property, in which case 
that basis will be used. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and 
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because 
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current 
judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are: 

 Management’s estimate of the functional classification of expenses is based on estimated levels 
of efforts of the School’s staff members, the space utilized by the programs, various program 
achievements, and the direct use of certain funds.  

 Management’s estimate that all Accounts Receivable is collectible and no allowance for doubtful 
accounts is necessary. 

 Management’s estimate of the useful lives of its fixed assets. 
 Management’s estimate of the interest rate used within the calculation of the right of use asset 

and lease liability. 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimates and determined that 
they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures  

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users. Note 12 to the financial statements discusses 
the uncertainty of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the future operations and financial position 
of the School. 

Significant Unusual Transactions 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to communicate to you significant 
unusual transactions identified during our audit. There were no significant unusual transactions 
identified as a result of our audit procedures. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 
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Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and 
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and 
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us 
to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant 
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.  During 
our audit we proposed and management passed on two adjustments whose effects in the current and 
prior periods, as determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to 
the financial statements taken as a whole. The adjustments were to record medical benefit expense of 
$101,248 for July 2022 that was incorrectly recorded in prior year and to reverse salaries of $150,050 
recorded in current year that should have been recorded in prior year.  Uncorrected misstatements or 
matters underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future-period financial 
statements to be materially misstated, even though the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the 
financial statements currently under audit. 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. The 
following material misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures were brought to 
the attention of, and corrected by, management: 

 To record right of use asset and lease liability as a result of adopting ASC Topic 842. 

The overall impact of these adjustments on the School’s financial statements was as follows: 

Assets Liabilities Net Assets Revenue Expenses 
$ 2,090,864 $ 2,100,270 $ - $ - $   9,406 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, which could be significant to the School’s financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such 
disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditors’ Report  

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that 
affect the form and content of our auditors’ report. There were no such circumstances identified. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in a separate 
letter dated August 14, 2023. 

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 
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Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with the School, we generally discuss a variety of 
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions 
affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. 
None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the School’s auditors. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of 
the School and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Bohemia, New York 
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________________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current 
or Former 7UXVWHH 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.). 

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school 
DQG�oU HGXcDWLoQ coUSoUDWLoQ? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and thH person s 
SosLWLoQ� MoE GHscULSWLoQ� DQG oWhHU UHsSoQsLELlLWLHs ZLWh WhH school. 

�.  Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any 
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and LI thH 
sWXGHQW could benefit from your participation. 
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4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of thH HGXcDWLoQ coUSoUDWLoQ? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and LI this person could 
benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or 
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest 
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract 
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, 
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real 
or personal property to the said entities? 

Yes No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
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�. ,dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
\oX� DQ\ oI \oXU LPPHGLDWH IDPLl\ PHPEHUs� DQG�oU DQ\ SHUsoQs Zho \oX UHsLGH 
ZLWh hDYH hHlG oU HQJDJHG LQ ZLWh WhH chDUWHU school�s� oSHUDWHG E\ WhH 
HGXcDWLoQ coUSoUDWLoQ GXULQJ WhH WLPH \oX hDYH sHUYHG oQ WhH %oDUG� DQG LQ WhH 
sL[ PoQWhs SULoU Wo sXch sHUYLcH� ,I WhHUH hDs EHHQ Qo sXch LQWHUHsW oU 
WUDQsDcWLoQ� chHcN None�

 None 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 
interest / 

transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, did 

not participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest 
or engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 
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�. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) \oX UHsLGH ZLWh had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business 
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please 
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization, 
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was 
no financial interest, check None. 

None 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business
with the school(s) 

and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 
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______________________________________________ 

_________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

-

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available 
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The 
personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 

Signature Date 

$cceStaEOe siJnatXre IRrPats incOXde� 
v 'iJitaOOy certiIied 3') siJnatXre 
v 3rint IRrP, PanXaOOy siJn, scan tR 3') 

last revised 04/2022 
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________________________________________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current 
or Former 7UXVWHH 

Trustee Name: 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) 
(e.g., chair, vice-chair, treasurer, secretary, parent representative, etc.). 

2. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school 
DQG�oU HGXcDWLoQ coUSoUDWLoQ? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and thH person s 
SosLWLoQ� MoE GHscULSWLoQ� DQG oWhHU UHsSoQsLELlLWLHs ZLWh WhH school. 

�.  Are you related by blood, or marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship to any 
student currently enrolled in a school operated by the education corporation? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and LI thH 
sWXGHQW could benefit from your participation. 
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4. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of thH HGXcDWLoQ coUSoUDWLoQ? 

Yes No 
If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and LI this person could 
benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or 
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest 
in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract 
or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, 
whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, the lease of real 
or personal property to the said entities? 

Yes No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 
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�. ,dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
\oX� DQ\ oI \oXU LPPHGLDWH IDPLl\ PHPEHUs� DQG�oU DQ\ SHUsoQs Zho \oX UHsLGH 
ZLWh hDYH hHlG oU HQJDJHG LQ ZLWh WhH chDUWHU school�s� oSHUDWHG E\ WhH 
HGXcDWLoQ coUSoUDWLoQ GXULQJ WhH WLPH \oX hDYH sHUYHG oQ WhH %oDUG� DQG LQ WhH 
sL[ PoQWhs SULoU Wo sXch sHUYLcH� ,I WhHUH hDs EHHQ Qo sXch LQWHUHsW oU 
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Date(s) Nature of 
financial 
interest / 

transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, did 
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discussion) 
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holding interest 
or engaging in 
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�. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) \oX UHsLGH ZLWh had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer, or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with and/or doing business 
with the school(s) through a management or services agreement, please 
identify only the name of the organization, your position in the organization, 
and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was 
no financial interest, check None. 
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Organization
conducting

business with 
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and/or immediate 
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household holding an 
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and the nature of the 
interest 

Steps
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

Page 4 of 5 



    

  

   
            

 

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

-

This document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available 
to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. The 
personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: 

Business Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Home Telephone: 

Home Address: 

$cceStaEOe siJnatXre IRrPats incOXde� 
v 'iJitaOOy certiIied 3') siJnatXre 
v 3rint IRrP, PanXaOOy siJn, scan tR 3') 

Date Signature 

last revised 04/2022 
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September 1 & 5 Superintendent's Conference Days Parent conf 1/2 day 

September 4 Labor Day 

September 6 First Day for All Students Professional Development 1/2 day 

September 25 Yom Kippur 
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November 10 Veterans' Day 

November 23-24 Thanksgiving Recess { } Superintendent's Conference Day 

December 25 - Jan. 1 Christmas Recess 

January 15 Martin Luther King's Birthday 

February 19 Presidents' Day 
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April 22-26 Spring Recess 

May 27 Memorial Day 

June 19 Juneteenth Observed 

June 26 Last Day of Student Attendance and School 

AUGUST 

OCTOBER 

SEPTEMBER 

FEBRUARY

 Riverhead Charter SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR 2023-2024 

JANUARY 

NOVEMBER 

JULY 

DATES TO REMEMBER 

JUNE 

DECEMBER 

APRIL 

MARCH 

MAY 

  

   

 

 

 

 

 

       

  

        

  

    

  

       

     

  

   

        

             

 

 

 

       

         

     

        

  

3 4 5 6 7 

10 11 12 13 14 

17 18 19 20 21 

24 25 26 27 28 

31 

1 2 3 4 

7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 

21 22 23 24 25 

28 29 30 31 

{ 1 } 

4 { 5 } 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 17 +2 

18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 

2 3 4 5 6 

9 10 11 12 26 

16 17 18 19 20 21 

23 24 25 26 27 

30 31 

1 2 3 

6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 19 

20 21 22 23 24 

27 28 29 30 

1 2 3 4 5 

8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 21 

22 23 24 25 26 

29 30 31 

1 2 

5 6 7 8 9 

12 13 14 15 16 16 

19 20 21 22 23 

26 27 28 29 

1 

4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 20 

18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 

1 2 3 4 5 

8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 16 

22 23 24 25 26 

29 30 

1 2 3 

6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 22 

20 21 22 23 24 * 

27 28 * 29 30 31 

1 

4 5 6 7 8 

1611 12 13 14 15 

18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 

* 185 Instructional Days 
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